
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

WWAASSHHIINNGGTTOONN  CCOOUUNNTTYY  
  

  
  

BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

SSeepptteemmbbeerr  77,,  22002211  
  



September 2, 2021  11:54:43 AM 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 
COMMISSIONERS’ CONFERENCE ROOM & LIVESTREAM 

 ON FACEBOOK VIA ZOOM 
116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 

6:00 PM Call to Order—Vice-Chair Tracey A. Johnson 
6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   

Additions / Deletions 

Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature. The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote. Any item may be withheld from a general 
action, to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for August 2, 2021
b) Approval of Closed Session Meeting Minutes for:

August 6, 2020, September 8, 2020, October 5, 2020, November 2, 2020, December 
7, 2020, February 1, 2021, March 1, 2021, April 5, 2021, May 17, 2021, May 24, 
2021, June 7, 2021, June 14, 2021 and July 6, 2021

c) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts
d) Fee Schedule:  EMS
e) Post-Employment Retirement Policy—Sections 1-10 of Article V
f) VUR Grant Resolution
g) Resolution 2021-005 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 111 East Main Street, 

Plymouth, by Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160-A-270
h) Ratification of Resolution 2021-013 Opposing Reduction in the Number of Judges in 

the Second Judicial District
i) SAA Delegates for October Meeting
j) Resolution:  Remembering 9/11
k) Surplus Property Disposition to Roanoke Development Center (RDC)
l) Amendment to Plymouth’s CFR Funds
m) “Application for Property Tax Relief” 2021 Late Application

Item 2 6:15 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 

Item 3 6:25 PM Public Hearing:  Proposed FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) 
Application, Ms. Lynn Swett, DSS Deputy Director 

Item 4 6:35 PM Employee of the Quarter, Vice-Chair Johnson 



September 2, 2021  11:54:43 AM 

 
 
Item 5 6:45 PM Department Information Update: Emergency Management, Mr. Lance Swindell, 

Emergency Management Coordinator 
 
Item 6 7:15 PM Tobacco/Vaping Presentation, Ms. Miranda Keel, Tobacco Health Educator, MTW Health 

Department 
 
Item 7 7:30 PM New Washington County Logo, Mr. Tom Harrison, Travel & Tourism Director 
 
Item 8 7:45PM 2020 Census Data & Redistricting, Mr. Harry White, GIS/Mapping Director and Mr. 

Richard Livingston, Lead for North Carolina Fellow (LNCF) 
 
Item 9 8:15 PM Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
Item 10 8:25 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, 

Finance Officer 
 

Item 11 8:35 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
Item 12 8:45 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 

privilege), and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
  

 
RECESS/ADJOURN 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  1    
 
       DATE:  September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:   Consent Agenda      
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for August 2, 2021 

See attached. 
 

b) Approval of Closed Session Meeting Minutes for: 
August 6, 2020, September 8, 2020, October 5, 2020, November 2, 2020, December 7, 
2020, February 1, 2021, March 1, 2021, April 5, 2021, May 17, 2021, May 24, 2021, June 7, 
2021, June 14, 2021 and July 6, 2021 
 

c) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
See attached. 
 

d) Fee Schedule:  EMS 
See attached. 
 

e) Post-Employment Retirement Policy—Sections 1-10 of Article V 
See attached. 
 

f) VUR Grant Resolution 
See attached. 
 

g) Resolution 2021-005 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 111 East Main Street, Plymouth, by 
Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160-A-270 
See attached. 
 

h) Ratification of Resolution 2021-013 Opposing Reduction in the Number of Judges in the 
Second Judicial District 
See attached. 
 



i) SAA Delegates for October Meeting—submitted by Paulique Horton, Washington County 
Vice-President of the Southern Albemarle Association. 
See attached. 
 

j) Resolution:  Remembering 9/11 
See attached. 
 

k) Surplus Property Disposition to Roanoke Development Center (RDC) 
See attached. 
 

l) Amendment to Plymouth’s CFR Funds 
Mr. Potter would like the Board to authorize the County Manager and Finance 
Officer to execute an amendment to our CRF MOU with the Town of Plymouth to 
extend the date of performance of the MOU from 12/30/20 to 12/30/21. 
 

m) “Application for Property Tax Relief” 2021 Late Application  
See attached. 
 
 



DRAFT 

                       
 
 

August 2, 2021 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
August 2, 2021 at 6:00 PM by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the COVID-19 
pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming and in person in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Tracey Johnson, Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps, Bill Sexton 
and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis 
Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Sexton called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the invocation; 
County Manager Potter led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, asked to delete Item 3: 
Department Information Update:  Emergency Management, Mr. Lance Swindell, EM 
Coordinator.  Mr. Swindell is under the weather. 
  
 Mr. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney requested to add the introduction of the 
new LFNC Management Fellow in the County Manager’s Office.   
 
 Commissioner Johnson asked Ms. Bennett to remove “the” in the motion on the first page 
of the previous minutes (regarding Renee Collier).   
 
 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda with the above noted change: 
 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
    

Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
   
 PUBLIC FORUM:  Mr. Maurice Perry went to the county landfill on 7/16 and said he has been 
going for 19 years. On 7/16, the landfill guy started filling out a form for him and asked for his Social 
Security Number (SS#).  Mr. Perry asked why he needed his SS#.  The landfill guy said the County 
Manager said they have to have that now.  Mr. Perry wanted to know why and went to the County 
Manager’s Office and it was explained to him that it was for being able to track down folks who don’t 
pay their landfill bill.  Mr. Perry said he didn’t feel the landfill is a secure environment for leaving a 
SS#.  Mr. Perry asked why the tax office can’t assign him a number that he can give the landfill. 
 



DRAFT 

 Chair Sexton said he had this same conversation with the County Manager today because he has 
had some complaints about this. Chair Sexton said some changes were going to be made regarding this 
situation.  
 
 Mr. Jimmy Jones, Cardinal Lane, said he had a lot of issues to discuss, but was going to talk 
about getting the house at the front of the road to not put his trash can so close to the road.  Mr. Jones 
still talked about needing Cardinal Lane paved.  Mr. Jones showed a picture to the Commissioners that 
showed there was a road there. Commissioner Keyes asked did it show that it was before 1975.  Mr. 
Jones then went back to talking about the trash can being too close to the road.  Chair Sexton said he 
would ask the County Manager to talk to Republic Services about the trash can issue. 
  
 LFNC FELLOW INTRODUCTION: Mr. Potter introduced Mr. Richard Livingston.  Mr. 
Livingston will be here for the next year working in the County Manager’s Office. Mr. Potter said he has 
already assigned him some tasks.  Mr. Livingston said he graduated from UNC-CH. He said he joined 
the LFNC because it had the best opportunities.  Mr. Livingston said he is from eastern NC and happy to 
be here and he thanked the Board for this opportunity.  Mr. Potter also said Mr. Livingston has secured 
housing in our community. 
 
BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 

Northeastern Workforce Development Board (NWDB) 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked the Commissioners and the Clerk for assistance in 
identifying a new appointee to replace Diane White (Business Representative—Washington 
County) who is resigning from the NWDB. No names were given so it will be brought up again. 

 
Ms. Bennett said she put the information on the County’s Facebook page and pinned it to 

the top but has had no interest.  
 
Commissioner Johnson said since NWDB is looking for a business person but businesses 

are suffering and the owners can’t take the time to fill this spot, that she will take this back to the 
NWDB and ask for more time to find someone rather than losing a spot. 

  
FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 

amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Chair Sexton said he had an issue but 
discussed it with the County Manager this afternoon.  It dealt with the word “volunteer” in transit 
operators on a Budget Amendment.  Mr. Potter explained that they are volunteers but they are 
paid to transport to medical appointments and DSS does get 100% reimbursement by the State 
and it is paid by the mile. 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 

 



DRAFT 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the budget amendments as 
presented.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
MANAGER OR CLERK:   
 
 Commissioner Johnson stated the upcoming annual NCACC Annual Conference will be starting 
on August 11, 2021 in New Hanover County.  She noted that she is on a panel to discuss using the ARP 
funding.  She would like some direction from the Board on their thoughts for using the ARP funds. 
Commissioner Johnson said she will be moving up to the position of President-Elect of the NCACC.  She 
also said she appreciates the support of the Board. 
 
 Commissioner Walker stated he went on the tour of Washington County High school and Pines 
Elementary School with the folks from DPI.  He is looking forward to their report.  
 
 Commissioner Keyes said she attended Mr. Sprayberry’s retirement and stated he had good things 
to say about Washington County.  Commissioners Keyes said she also attend an NCACC Caucus Meeting 
today by ZOOM.  The purposed of the meeting was to appoint someone to represent our District.  Mr. 
Curtis from Chowan County was voted in to represent us. 
 
 Ms. Bennett told the Commissioners who were attending the NCACC Annual Conference that she 
will have their travel packages ready at the beginning of next week.  
 
 Mr. Potter discussed the following items:   
 Mr. Potter said tomorrow is Convocation at Washington County High School.   
 Mr. Potter also said there will be a conference call with the Albemarle Commission about regional 

broadband.  He will either be traveling to it or watch it on ZOOM in Commissioners’ Room.   
 Mr. Potter noted that the County’s recycling day changed from Tuesday to Thursday. 
 Mr. Potter has a meeting scheduled with the Sheriff regarding the NCACC risk pool. 
 There will be a public meeting next Monday night regarding the Airport APL from 5:00 – 7:00 pm 

in the Commissioners’ Room. 
 There will be a meeting for community relations at the Vernon James Center. 
 Mr. Potter and Ms. Dixon stopped by the landfill last week and have decided to make some 

revisions to the landfill policy – change it to the last 4 of their SS# and more protocols to keep the 
information safe (or a picture of the driver’s license) 

 COVID-19 Delta Variant:  Mr. Potter said he went with Mr. Gray, MTW Health Director, to 
Edenton and they talked about what the County should be doing. Currently there are no changes in 
our guidance.  So far Washington County has not been affected by this variant. Mr. Gray will keep 
an eye on it; however, no changes to be made currently.  

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 

§143-318.11(a)(3)--attorney-client privilege and NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss personnel.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner 
Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Sexton, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 



DRAFT 

Back in Open Session, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve a flat salary rate of 
$102,500 for one year starting 8/16/21 for the County Manager and that his salary for future years 
would be considered during the regular budget process.  Commissioner Walker seconded. Chair 
Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

At 8:30 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Johnson made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Chair Sexton proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Johnson, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Sexton, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                       Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

      Vice-Chair        Clerk to the Board 
 













 
 
 
FEE Schedule update for EMS for 9/7/2021 BoCC Meeting 
 
 
 
Please see the inserted Ambulance Fee Schedule.  Most fees are remaining the same with the exception 
of the BLS Emergent Rate.  Colleton and myself have reviewed and do not see any additional needs for 
increase.  We are comfortably above the Medicare allowable charges. 
 
1. EMS AND NON-EMERGENCY TRANSPORT FEE SCHEDULE 

CHARGE LIST FEE 
BLS Non-Emergency $ 350.00 
BLS Emergency $ 525.00 
ALS Non-Emergent $ 425.00 
ALS 1 Emergent $ 670.00 
ALS 2 Emergent $ 975.00 
ALS Treat (No Transport) $ 175.00 
Mileage $ 12.50 / per mile 

 
2. STANDBY AMBULANCE SERVICES: $ 80.00 / PER HOUR 
 



PROPOSED REVISION 
 

Article V: Employee Benefits 
 
 

Section 1: Eligibility 
 
All Washington County regular full-time employees and all eligible dependents are 
eligible for Washington County benefits.  Insurance coverage becomes effective the first 
day of the month following the date of employment. 
 
Section 2: Health Insurance 
 
Washington County offers health insurance to all full-time employees and their eligible 
dependents through the North Carolina State Health Plan administered by Blue Cross 
Blue Shield.   
 
Specific benefits and plan options are described in a benefits booklet provided to 
employees by North Carolina State Health Plan. 
 
Retiree premiums are based on retirement service.  In accordance with applicable 
health plan policy, employees who retire with 5 but less than 10 years retirement 
service will be eligible to continue health insurance coverage by paying the full 
premium until age 65.  Employees who retire with 10 but less than 20 years 
retirement service will be eligible to continue health insurance coverage by 
paying 50% of the cost of the premium.  Employees who retire with 20 or more 
years of retirement service will have the full County contribution paid for an 
individual rate until age 65.  Spouses and dependent children of those employees 
who were covered while the employee was in active service are eligible to 
continue coverage on a contributory basis.  
 
Effective January 1, 2021, retiree health insurance is no longer an offered benefit 
for new hires. 
 
Section 3: Dental Insurance 
 
Washington County offers paid group dental insurance to all full-time employees.  
Benefits are available to their eligible dependants on a contributory basis. 
 
Specific benefits are described in a benefits booklet available to employees. 
 
Section 4: Life Insurance 
 
Washington County pays the cost of life insurance for each full-time employee for the 
benefit amount of one year’s salary up to a maximum of $50,000.  Additional Life 
Insurance is available to the employee on a contributary basis. 
Dependent Life Insurance is an optional benefit offered to employees in which the 
employee must pay the premium. 



PROPOSED REVISION 
 

 
 
Section 5: Vision Insurance 
 
Washington County offers paid group vision insurance to all full-time employees.  
Benefits are available to their eligible dependents on a contributory basis. 
 
Specific benefits are described in a benefits booklet available to employees. 
 
Section 6: Local Government Employees Retirement System: 
 
Each full-time employee in a permanent position, working a minimum of 1,000 hours per 
year, will be enrolled in the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System.  
Employees contribute through payroll deduction, six percent (6%) of their gross salary 
each month to the system.  The County contributes an actuarially determined 
percentage of the gross payroll each month to the system. 
 
Section 7: North Carolina 401K Plan: 
 
The North Carolina 401K Plan is an optional supplemental retirement plan administered 
by Prudential which is available for full-time employees to participate in.  100% of the 
contribution is vested immediately.  If an employee opts to contribute a minimum of $20 
per month to the 401K Plan, Washington County will contribute 3.0% of the employee’s 
salary to the plan per month on behalf of the employee.  Law enforcement officers have 
no minimum requirement and Washington County contributes 5.0% of their salary to the 
plan per month on their behalf which is mandatory according to statutes. 
 
Section 8: Longevity 
 
To be eligible for longevity pay: 
1) An employee must be a permanent employee of Washington County working at least 
1000 hours per year and is participating in the North Carolina Local Government 
Retirement System. 
2) The earliest possible date of eligibility for a longevity payment is when the employee 
has completed five years of continuous service to Washington County on or before 
November 17th.  If an employee has multiple periods of employment, continuous service 
does not include any prior periods of employment which occurred before the employee’s 
most recent date of hire. 
3) Employees who have met all other requirements for longevity pay and either retire or 
their employment is terminated as a result of reduction in force shall receive a final 
longevity payment of 1/12 of the earned longevity for each full month of service during 
the final calendar year of employment  
4) Employees on approved leave of absence or leave without pay will receive their 
longevity pay but employees working less than 1000 hours a year for their department 
are not eligible for longevity pay. 
 



PROPOSED REVISION 
 

 
 
Amount of longevity pay: 
The amount of annual longevity pay is a percentage of the employee’s annual gross 
rate of pay not including overtime.  Longevity pay is computed by multiplying the 
employee’s current annual rate of pay by the appropriate longevity percentage rate.  
This calculation should always be rounded up to the nearest dollar.  Longevity 
percentage rates are: 
 
Years of Washington County Service Longevity Rate 
5 but less than 10 years 1.0% 
10 but less than 15 years 1.5% 
15 but less than 20 years 2.0% 
20 but less than 25 years 2.5% 
25 or more years 3.0% 
 
Longevity is paid once per year and deposited into eligible employees’ accounts 
separately from any other payroll.  Longevity pay is subject to all statutory deductions 
including Federal Income Withholding Tax, State Income Withholding Tax, Social 
Security Tax, and Employee’s Retirement Contribution.   
No other deductions will made from longevity payments.  
 
Longevity payments made to employees in error, due to the employee’s or Washington 
County’s mistake, must be returned to the County immediately. 
 
Section 9: Social Security (FICA) 
 
The County, to the extent of its lawful authority and power, shall extend Social Security 
benefits for its eligible employees in accordance with the provisions of the Social 
Security Act.  The federal Social Security program provides monthly benefits upon 
retirement, with full benefits available at age sixty-five (65) and reduced benefits 
available as early as age sixty-two (62). 
 
Section 10: Credit Unions 
 
Washington County employees and their family members are eligible to participate in 
the State Employees Credit Union or Local Government Employees Federal Credit 
Union.  The credit unions offer a number of services to members including savings 
programs, interest checking, money market accounts, certificates of deposit, individual 
retirement accounts, loans, check cashing, loan protection insurance and member 
account insurance.  All contributions are 100% financed by the employee. 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
                
 
 
 
 
 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-015 
RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT 

 
WHEREAS, Session Law 2020-79 was signed into law on July 1, 2020 to improve 

viability of the water and wastewater systems of certain units of local government; the Viability 
Reserve was established in the Water Infrastructure fund to be used for grants to include the 
study of rates, asset inventory and assessment and/or merger and regionalization options; the 
State Water Infrastructure Authority and the Local Government Commission have developed 
criteria to assess local government units and identify distressed units, and 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Washington has been designated as a distressed unit and 

intends to conduct an Asset Assessment Study and Rate Study, and 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Washington has need for state grant assistance for the project. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON: 
 

That Washington County, the Applicant, will complete the viable utility requirements in 
§159G-45(b) by:  

1. Conducting an asset assessment and rate study.  (Recently completed asset 
assessment or rate studies may be sufficient to meet this requirement.) 

2. Participate in a training and educational program. 
3. Develop a short-term and long-term action plan considering all of the following: 

a. Infrastructure repair, maintenance, and management. 
b. Continuing education of the governing board and system operating staff. 
c. Long-term financial management plan. 

 
That the Applicant will provide adequate access to staff, documents, equipment, and 

other resources pertinent to complete the project, and upon completion of the project provide 
good faith effort to implement the short-term and long-term plan to achieve viable utility 
infrastructure measures. 
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

That the County Manager/County Attorney, the Authorized Official, and successors so 
titled, is hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the 
State of North Carolina for a grant to aid in the completion of the project described above. 
 

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed 
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with 
such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute 
such other documents as may be required in connection with the application. 
 

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, 
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to Federal 
and State grants pertaining thereto. 
 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ in Washington County, NC. 
 

              
      __________________________________________ 

          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

    Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
          Clerk to the Board 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 
CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER 
  

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Clerk of Washington County Board of Commissioners 

does hereby certify that the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the 

resolution authorizing the filing of an application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly 

adopted at a legally convened meeting of the (name of governing body of applicant) duly held 

on the   ________ day of _______________, 20_____;  and, further, that such resolution has 

been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office.  IN WITNESS 

WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this  ________ day of _______________, 20____. 

  

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
  

Clerk to the Board of Washington County Commissioners 
  

 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
                
 
 
 
 
 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-005 
AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, 111 EAST MAIN ST PLYMOUTH, 

BY ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 

 
WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 
County to sell real property at public auction, including electronic public auction, upon adoption 
of a resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the property at public auction 
subject to the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, should 
be sold as public auction as surplus property; and 
 

1. 111 E Main St, NC; Tax Pin #6767.00-67-9717; Deed Book 430, Page 377; 
2. Approximate estimated tax value (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated back taxes owed: County = $9478.71/Town= $6706.26 (See 

Attachment B) 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioner of Washington 
County: 
 

1. That the County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction 
at www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above during the next 120 days 
following approval of this resolution. 
 

2. That electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be 
posted at least 30 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property 
opens. 

 
3. That electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website 

and, where feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic 
auction may be broadly advertised. 
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 

http://www.govdeals.com/


Page 2 of 2 

4. That electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the
property to be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the
electronic address where information about the property to be sold can be found, a
reference to the resolution authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and
conditions of sale.

5. That after conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at
their next regularly scheduled meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid
within 30 days of said report.

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ in Washington County, NC. 

__________________________________________ 
   Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair     

Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 
    Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

Clerk to the Board 

jbennett
Underline



 

ATTACHMENT A 



 
 

County Taxes Owed 

 
Town Taxes Owed 

 

ATTACHMENT B 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
                
 
 
 
 
 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

 
RESOLUTION 2021-013 

 
RESOLUTION 

OPPOSING THE REDUCTION 
IN THE NUMBER OF JUDGES IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
WHEREAS, the Second Judicial District is comprised of the following five counties: Beaufort, 
Martin, Washington, Tyrrell and Hyde; and 
 
WHEREAS, the geographical area of the Second Judicial District is the largest in the State of 
North Carolina covering over 3,900 square miles; and 
 
WHEREAS, judges are already required to travel between 28 to 79 miles one way, to get to the 
various courthouses within the Second Judicial District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Second Judicial District has had four judges since 2001, and the number of 
felonies and traffic matters has steadily increased and doubled over the past twenty years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Opioid Crisis has further contributed to a shocking increase in the number of 
criminal cases being dealt with in the Second Judicial District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the indirect and tragic impacts of the Opioid Crisis upon the children and families 
within the affected communities has even further contributed to an equally shocking increase in 
the number of abuse, neglect and dependency cases requiring additional judicial time to be 
spent both in and out of the courtroom by judges within the Second Judicial District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Juvenile Justice Reinvestment Act went into effect December 1, 2019, and 
required the Second Judicial District to add court sessions to accommodate the increased 
number of juvenile cases to be dealt with as a result; and,  
 
WHEREAS, any reduction in the number of judges in the Second Judicial District will 
immediately cause a reduction in the number of court sessions and result in crowded 
courtrooms, longer court days, case delays, and will negatively impact the clerks, bailiffs, law 
enforcement, attorneys, judges, and most importantly the general public served by our court 
system; and 
 
WHEREAS, we conclude it is not in the best interest of our citizens or the Second Judicial 
District to lose any of the four judge positions that have been assigned to the district for two 
decades, due to the immediate and significant detrimental impact such loss would have upon 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

our citizen’s access to justice in a prompt and effective manner. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That this resolution in opposition to any reduction in the number of judges in the 
Second Judicial District is adopted, and that it be transmitted to the North Carolina 
General Assembly through the duly elected members of that body representing those 
counties within the Second Judicial District in order to respectfully request that the 
number of judges in the Second Judicial District not be reduced for the reasons stated 
herein. 
 

Approved upon the unanimous consent of the Board of Commissioners this the 13th day of 
August, 2021. (Pending formal ratification by the Board at its next regular scheduled meeting.) 

 
      
 __________________________________ 
      Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
 Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 
  Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
        Clerk to the Board  

 



Office First Name City State Zip Phone
VP Paulique Creswell NC 27928 252-619-3504

J. D. Creswell NC 27928 252-797-4493
Ruffin Plymouth NC 27962 252-741-1173
Syble Creswell NC 27928 252-797-4386

SAA/Past Pres. Kim Plymouth NC 27962 919-971-5828
Denise Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-3688
Knapp Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-9801

Albem. RPO Angela M. Hertford NC 27944 252-426-5775
SAA/PP Buster Pantego NC 27860 252-935-5307

Lunetta Plymouth NC 27962 252-809-9020

Nellie Ann Creswell NC 27928 252-394-5357

Rona Edenton NC 27932 252-301-0166

Norvilla Plymouth NC 27962 252-506-2608

Carol Creswell NC 27928
Julius Roper NC 27970

Tracey Plymouth NC 27962
Ann Plymouth NC 27962
Bill Plymouth NC 27962

Curtis Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-5823
Shawn Plymouth NC 27962
Denise Roper NC 27970

Edwin (Ray) Creswell NC 27928
Timothy Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2325

Sam Creswell NC 27928
Sharon Creswell NC 27928 252-394-0666
Lance Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-4114
Allen Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-4114

Brenda Creswell NC 27928 252-394-6057
Ron Creswell NC 27928
Cora Creswell NC 27928 252-217-0365

Jack (James) Roper NC 27970 252-741-0042
Roy Plymouth NC 27962 252-217-0026

Joyce Creswell NC 27928 252-394-5083
Tim Creswell NC 27928

Carolyn Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-2041
Audrey Plymouth NC 27962 252-793-5844
Betty Roper NC 27970 252-793-9686

Washington County Executive Committee Members

Citizen
Tyrrell Co. DOT Employee
Citizen
Citizen
Citizen

Creswell Town Commission
Creswell Town Commission
Citizen
Citizen
Citizen

Register of Deeds
Citizen
Citizen
Emergency Manager
Planning/Safety/inspection

County Commissioner
County Manager/Attorney
Mayor of Plymouth
Mayor of Roper
Mayor of Creswell

Permission to Continue to Serve as 
Executive Committee Member

County Commissioner
County Commissioner
County Commissioner
County Commissioner

awelsh@albemarlecommission.org
manningfarms@gotricounty.com Past President

Permission to Continue to Serve as 
Executive

Committee Member

Permission to Continue to Serve as 
Executive Committee Member

Permission to Continue to Serve as 
Executive Committee Member

ruffin.gill@gmail.com Finance
rayandsyble@embarqmail.com Road Sides & Parks

kimcottenwest@gmail.com Rules
neecee32353@yahoo.com Rules
kbrabble@washconc.org Airports

E-mail Committee Assignments
hortonfinancialservices@gmail.com VP 5th Year

Roads & Bridges

Sawyer 84 Spruill Town Road
Chesson 119B Albermarle Road
Sheftall 2472 US Highway 64

Littlejohn PO Box 208

Pledger PO Box 91
Webb 1252 Jones White Road
Hines 1216 Wilson Street Extension

Alexander PO Box 104

Owens 2726 Old Cherry Road
Swindell 205 East Main Street
Pittman 205 East Main Street

Logan PO Box 183
Ambrose PO Box 224

Hawkins 124 East Water Street
Blount PO Box 217
Blount PO Box 123
Esolen P.O. Box 1007

Davenport 110 Rabbit Cross Road

Walker PO Box 358
Johnson 312 East 3rd Street

Keyes 152 Gee Street
Sexton 125 Sexton Farm
Potter Po Box 1007

Lewis 849 NC Highway 45 North

Fleming P.O. Box 322

Norman

307 Buncombe Street Roper, PO Box 
302,

Norman 112A Somerset Road

Phelps 2250 Mt. Tabor Road

Cotton-West 7580 Long Ridge Road
Moulden 177 Old Roper Road Loop
Brabble 1069 Airport Road
Welsh 512 South Church Street

Manning 6414 NC 99 South

Last Name Street Address/P.O. Box
Horton 992 St Davids Road
Melton P. O. Box 26

Gill 112 Longleaf Lane
Spruill P. O Box 277

mailto:awelsh@albemarlecommission.org
mailto:manningfarms@gotricounty.com
mailto:ruffin.gill@gmail.com
mailto:rayandsyble@embarqmail.com
mailto:kimcottenwest@gmail.com
mailto:neecee32353@yahoo.com
mailto:kbrabble@washconc.org
mailto:hortonfinancialservices@gmail.com


Cole Creswell NC 27928
Clinton Roper NC 27970 252-217-7384
Roger Roper NC 27970 252-799-7360

Deborah Roper NC 27970 252-505-6220
Lessie Creswell NC 27928
Arlo Roper NC 27970

Johnny Plymouth NC 27962
Bernard Plymouth NC 27962
Bunny Roper NC 27970
Alonzo Plymouth NC 27962 252-484-2347

Deborah Roper NC 27970 252-505-6220
Harry Plymouth NC 27962 252-809-9121
Jean Creswell NC 27928

Citizen
Maps/GIS
Former County Commission

Deputy
Washington County Sheriff
Citizen
Former Mayor of Roper
Citizen

Citizen/Former County Com
Citizen
Citizen
Citizen
Citizen

White 3078 NC Highway 45S
Alexander PO Box 295

Barnes PO Box 969
Norman 82 Sunrise Lane
Sanders PO Box 357

Sutton 206 Quail Drive
Franklin 5439 Mackey's Road

Wilkins PO Box 568
McCobb 10212 NC Highway 32 North

Spruill PO Box 353
Norman 15672 NC Highway 94 North

Phelps 2046 Weston Road

Franklin 5439 Mackeys Road



COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
                
 
 
 
 
 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-016 

Proclamation 
9/11 Day of Remembrance 

20th Anniversary 
 

WHEREAS, in an unprovoked and senseless act of terrorism, four civilian aircraft were hijacked on 
September 11, 2001, and crashed in New York City, Pennsylvania and the Pentagon, resulting in a 
momentous loss of innocent U.S. lives of all heritages; and 
 
WHEREAS, while we still continue to recover from the loss of innocent lives, the spirit of the U.S. has 
been revitalized, giving way to expressions of patriotism; and 
 
WHEREAS, inspired by the heroism of our nation’s public service personnel,  military service members 
and countless volunteers, our nation found unity and strength; and 
 
WHEREAS, from the tragedy of September 11 emerged a stronger nation, renewed by the spirit of 
national pride, and a true love of country; and 
 
WHEREAS, Americans also have fought back against terror by choosing to overcome evil with good by 
loving their neighbors as they would like to be loved, contributing to relief efforts, and volunteering their 
time to aid those in need;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Board of Commissioners of Washington County, 
do hereby proclaim September 11, 2021, as the 20th Anniversary of the attacks of 9/11 and also the 
9/11 National Day of Service and Remembrance in the County of Washington and urge our citizens to 
recognize the heroism of firefighters, rescue and law enforcement personnel, military service members and 
the many volunteers who responded to these tragic events with courage, selfless compassion, 
determination and skill; and to remember the victims and innocent lives lost as a result of the tragic 
events on September 11, 2001.  
 
This the 7th day of September, 2021. 

         ____________________________ 
                                                          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
                
 
 
 
 
 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-014 
APPROVING CONVEYANCE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY TO  

A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-280 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Washington owns a green 1998 Ford E150 Van, currently 

estimated to have an approximate value of $1,459.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §160A-280 authorizes a city or county to convey 

personal property for nonmonetary consideration to a nonprofit corporation if the governing 
board deems the property to be surplus, obsolete, or unused; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Washington has determined that the personal property described 

above is surplus, obsolete, or unused; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Washington finds that the public will benefit from the conveyance 

of the property described above by donating the Van to Roanoke Developmental Center, who 
provide many programs that enrich the vulnerable population they serve but also to the 
organizations in which the participants volunteer. Roanoke Developmental Center has had a 
long relationship with Washington County and has asked numerous times over a span of years 
to purchase or receive a surplus vehicle the County no longer utilizes. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS: 
 
1. That the County Manager and County Finance Officer of Washington County is authorized 

to execute all documents necessary to convey title to the green 1998 Ford E150 Van to 
Roanoke Developmental Center. 

 
2. That the consideration for the conveyance is for Roanoke Developmental Center to utilize 

the van to continue serving citizens of Washington County through its programs without 
limitation due to transport service. 

 
3.  That In accordance with the notice requirements of N.C.G.S. § 160A-280, public notice 

of this resolution was given by {describe how notice was given, such as “posting on the 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

city/county website” and state the state on which the notice was posted.  Notice must be 
given at least 5 days prior to the board meeting at which the resolution is adopted.} 

 
 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ in Washington County, NC. 

 

              
      __________________________________________ 

          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

    Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
          Clerk to the Board 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



WASHINGTON COUNTY 
     TAX DEPARTMENT 
                          P.O. BOX 1007 
 Plymouth, North Carolina 27962  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Washington County Commissioners 
 
FROM: Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
DATE:  August 31, 2021 
 
RE:   Approval of “Application for Property Tax Relief” Late Applications 
 
In regards to the late application from Debbie Bell for the Disabled Veteran’s Exemption – 
surviving spouse, the North Carolina General Statutes requires that the Board of County 
Commissioners be responsible for approving the applications if there is a showing of good 
cause why they were filed after the deadline of June 1st.  Ms. Bell requested her Certification for 
Disabled Veteran’s information from the VA after I notified her that I had denied her timely 
application because I had not received the NCDVA-9 form – State of North Carolina, 
Certification for Disabled Veteran’s Property Tax Exclusion (G.S. 105-277.1C) - as required.  
Ms. Bell stated that she wasn’t aware that the form was required, she stated that our office had 
not informed her of this requirement.  I showed Ms. Bell Part 1 of the application that lists the 
parts to complete and the necessary documentation.  Ms. Bell stated that she overlooked that.  
Ms. Bell did bring the completed NCDVA-9 form to our office on August 12, 2021.  She asks 
that her application be considered for approval for 2021.  I did receive the application by the 
June 1st deadline just not the NCDVA-9 form.  The form has been signed by a representative of 
the VA and Ms. Bell does qualify as a surviving spouse.  
 
 
 
   Approved            
       Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
  Not Approved 
 
 
               
       Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 

 
 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for 
comments from the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public 
comment period.  
 
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the 
beginning of each regular monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum 
of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the 
meeting at which they wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins 
prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall clearly write their name, address, and the topic 
upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
 
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, 
which I wish to remind the public is: 
 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and 

begin their remarks by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer 

any impromptu questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks 
to the Board as a body, and not to any individual board or staff members.  
Discussions between speakers and members of the audience shall not be allowed. 



4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use 
profanity, racial slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal 
attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their 
remarks depending on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may 
limit the number of speakers allowed to make substantially similar comments 
with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are 
encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and documents with the County 
Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of 
public hearings set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session 
matters, including without limitation matters within the attorney-client privilege, 
anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, and matters 
which are made confidential by law. 

HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM/PUBLIC 
HEARING DURING COVID-19 AT THE SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 
Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-

19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  
Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency 
and community engagement during these challenging times, and appreciates your 
patience and understanding with such restrictions. The September 7, 2021 Board of 
Commissioners meeting will take place at 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC in the 
Commissioners’ Room and be live streamed on the County’s Facebook Page. Please 
review the following information carefully regarding alternative ways to access or 
participate in this, or any other public hearing, or any public comment portion of the 
regular meeting. 

 
1. Access and View the meeting online.  The meeting will be live streamed on the 

County’s publicly accessible Facebook page at:  www.facebook.com/Washconc/  
 
2. Only if you wish to speak during any public comment period, or during any 

advertised public hearing portion of the meeting, you may attend the meeting in 
person for such purpose.  You must arrive at 116 Adams Street before 6:00 PM to 
sign up.  You must wear a cloth protective mask, maintain at least three feet of 
distance between yourself and all other persons, and follow any other applicable 
social distancing guidance.  You may be asked to wait outside (please come 
prepared for inclement weather), and each person may be called into the meeting 
room one at a time to address the Board before being required to leave the meeting 
room in order to limit overall occupancy and comply with applicable regulations and 
guidance.  You may still follow the remainder of the meeting which will be live 

http://www.facebook.com/Washconc/


streaming on the Facebook page referred to above, or may access a recording of the 
full meeting which will remain accessible on our Facebook page for at least 48 hours 
after the meeting is concluded. 

 
Please contact Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board at 252-793-5823, or by email at 
jbennett@washconc.org before 2:00 PM on Monday, September 7, 2021 with any 
questions or concerns related to this notice or access to or participation in the 
September 7, 2021 meeting. 

 

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Public Hearing:  Proposed FY2023 Community Transportation 

Program (CTP) Application Submittal, Lynn Swett, DSS Deputy 
Director 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
DSS Deputy Director Lynn Swett will speak to the Commissioners on the proposed 
FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) Application submittal. By statute, 
they are required to have a public hearing on this. After the public hearing, Ms. Swett 
will ask the Board for their approval to submit their application to the NC Department of 
Transportation. (Deadline is October 8, 2021.) 
 
Below are the guidelines for tonight’s public hearing due to COVID-19. 
 

Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-
19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  
Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency 
and community engagement during these challenging times, and appreciates your 
patience and understanding with such restrictions.  Please review the following 
information carefully regarding alternative ways to access or participate in this, or any 
other public hearing, or any public comment portion of the regular meeting referred to 
above. 

 
1. Access and View the meeting online.  The meeting will be live streamed on the 

County’s publicly accessible Facebook page at:  www.facebook.com/Washconc/  
 
2. Only if you wish to speak during any public comment period, or during any 

advertised public hearing portion of the meeting, you may attend the meeting in 
person for such purpose.  You must arrive at 116 Adams Street before 6:00 PM to 
sign up.  You must wear a cloth protective mask, maintain at least six feet of 
distance between yourself and all other persons, and follow any other applicable 

http://www.facebook.com/Washconc/


social distancing guidance.  You may be asked to wait outside (please come 
prepared for inclement weather), and each person may be called into the meeting 
room one at a time to address the Board before being required to leave the meeting 
room in order to limit overall occupancy and comply with applicable regulations and 
guidance.  You may still follow the remainder of the meeting which will be live 
streaming on the Facebook page referred to above, or may access a recording of the 
full meeting which will remain accessible on our Facebook page for at least 48 hours 
after the meeting is concluded. 

 
Please contact Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board at 252-793-5823, or by email at 
jbennett@washconc.org before 2:00 PM on Monday, September 7, 2021 with any 
questions or concerns related to this notice or access to or participation in the 
September 7, 2021 public hearing on the proposed FY23 Community Transportation 
Program (CTP) application submittal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


  
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

Section 5311 (ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof. 
 

This is to inform the public that a public hearing will be held on the proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Community 
Transportation Program Application to be submitted to the North Carolina Department of Transportation no later 
than October 8, 2021. The public hearing will be held on September 7, 2021 at 6:00 PM before the Washington 
County Board of Commissioners at Board of Commissioners Room, 116Adams Street, Plymouth NC 27962. 
.  
 
Those interested in attending the public hearing and needing either auxiliary aids and services under the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) or a language translator should contact Clifton Hardison on or before September 6, 
2021, at telephone number 252-793-4041x205 or via email at cliftonh@wcchs.org.. 
 
The Community Transportation Program provides assistance to coordinate existing transportation programs 
operating in Washington County as well as provides transportation options and services for the communities within 
this service area.  These services are currently provided using a mini van or Light Transit Vehicles. .  Services are 
rendered by Washington County dba Riverlight Transit.. 

The total estimated amount requested for the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. 

 
NOTE: Local share amount is subject to State funding availability. 

Project 

 

Total Amount Local Share  

Administrative 

 

$ 95,935 $ 14,390  (15%) 

Operating (5311) 

 

$       $        (50%) 

Capital (Vehicles & Other) 

5310 Operating 

 

$ 6171 

 

$        

$ 617 

 

 

$       

 (10%) 
 
 
 
 
(50%) 

Other ___________________ 

TOTAL PROJECT  

  
 

$       

$ 102,106 

$       

$15,007 

 (    %) 

 

 

Total Funding Request Total Local Share 
 
 
This application may be inspected at  Washington County Department of Social Services from 8:30 am to 5:00pm.  
Written comments should be directed to Clifton Hardison or Lynn Swett before September 7, 2021.   

End of Notice  
 
 

Note:  AN ORIGINAL COPY of the published Public Hearing Notice must be attached to a 
signed Affidavit of Publication.  Both the Public Hearing Notice and the Affidavit of Publication 
must be submitted with the grant application. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Employee of the Quarter, Vice-Chair Johnson 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Board Vice-Chair will announce the Employee of the Quarter and present them with 
a certificate.  They will also receive a check for $50.00.  Ms. Collier will take their 
picture (in the foyer) which will be printed and displayed on the wall in the foyer of the 
Administration Building the following day. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Department Information Update:  Emergency Management, Mr. Lance 

Swindell, EM Coordinator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
This is a new item added to the monthly agenda.  Each month a different Department 
Head will be asked to come and speak to the Commissioners about the work going on in 
their area.  For the September 7, 2021 meeting, Mr. Lance Swindell, EM Coordinator, 
will give a presentation on the Emergency Management Department.  See attached. 
 
 
 
 
 



EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 
DEPARTMENT 
LANCE SWINDELL 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR  

 



Duties of Emergency Management 
Coordinator 

 Serves as a member of the Washington County Control Group 

 Develop and maintain standard operating procedures for emergency management 
operations 

 Perform assigned duties according to State and local ordinances 

 Develop and maintain a list of key individuals or departments to be notified in the event of 
an emergency/disaster 

 Assist emergency responders/departments in obtaining appropriate training 

 Maintain a list of available resources 

 Request additional resources from the state 

 Alert and activate as necessary, the county emergency management organization when 
informed of an emergency within the county 

 

 

  



Duties of Emergency Management 
Coordinator 

 Submit necessary emergency information and reports to the proper agencies during 
emergency and disaster events 

 Maintain contact with the Eastern Branch Office of Emergency Management during 
emergency situations 

 Serves as the principal liaison and advisor for emergency operations during 
emergency/disaster  

 Maintain operational readiness of the County’s Emergency Operations Center and serve as 
the EOC Manager during periods of activation 

 Apply for and coordinate any grants deemed necessary for the betterment of emergency 
management 

 Other duties including, responding to accidents for hazardous material reporting and 
containment needs, fire scenes to provide emergency sheltering needs for local families , 
ICS establishment for many things including search and rescue and or recovery operations. 

 Provide assistance for fire departments regarding grant preparation when needed  

 Exercise design and training for all emergency responders 



CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
 Is required by NC General Statues 186A-2 the 
responsibility of county government to organize 
and plan for the protection of life from the effects 
of an emergency/disaster. 

 Incident Command System – all multi-agency 
responses by emergency service providers (Law-
enforcement, Fire, EMS/Rescue) will follow ICS as 
agreed by Washington County Fire Commission. 
 



Concept of Operations, cont.. 

 Washington County utilizes four phases of Comprehensive Emergency 
Management  
◦ Mitigation – planning/building inspection programs to prevent sub-

standard building construction. 

  Fire inspections and fire codes enforced 

  Identify flood prone areas and minimize property loss to flood. 

  Local ordinances enacted and enforced 

◦ Preparedness – disaster planning and recognition of hazards likely to 
affect the area. 

◦ Response – when disaster occurs, respond as direct assistance or 
support agency to first responders 

◦ Recovery – After the immediate short term emergency needs of an 
area are controlled, the recovery process that may take several days 
to many months or years will begin. 



Pre-Season Planning 
 Hurricane Season Briefing 

◦All municipalities and partner agencies 

◦Critique of prior season 

◦Predictions for current seasons 

◦Evacuation routes 

◦Bridge closures 
 

 



Challenges 
  

  

 $$$$   FUNDING 

 EOC separate from office, future office location 

 2025 Deadline to upgrade most of our County Emergency Response 
Radios(800 MHz/Viper) 

 Size of county  

 Need for law enforcement support 

 Large number of mobile homes 

 Sheltering – change in location 

          Flood Zones  Mobile Homes 

          Loss of Infrastructure 

  

 

 



Challenges, cont.. 
 Evacuation of people from the county – Know Your Zone 

 COVID-19 Considerations 

 Debris removal Contract 

 Exhaustion of local resources 

 Timeframes for funding on some State and Federal grants. Some have 
been ongoing for years and project still does not have a green light to 
start work. 

 DATA plan and Internet in underserved areas 

  



Planning Factors 
 Hazard/Risk/Capability of Washington County & Neighbors 

 Schools 

 Roadways (prior history of flooding) 

 Special needs/medical needs population  

 Hospitals 

 Nursing Home          - Group Homes 

 Assisted Living Facility 

 Dialysis Center 

 Elderly Housing Project 

 Mobile Homes 

 

 

 

  

  



Decision Tools 
 National Weather Service 

 Hurrevac 

 Web EOC 

 Historical Data 

 Conference Calls 
◦ State 

◦ Local 

◦ Meteorologists 

◦ Federal Partners 

 



Communications 
 Local Media  

◦ Roanoke Beacon 

◦ Radio Stations 

 EAS 

 County Website 

 PA Announcements 

 Cable TV 

 Hyper Reach 

 911 to responders – radio and repeater systems 
 



Examples of Training and Response 



Response 



Training 



Response 



ICS Setup 



CERT -  Community 
Emergency Response Team 



Training Exercise 



Flooding 



Hazmat incident 
 



QUESTIONS 
 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Tobacco/Vaping Presentation, Ms. Miranda Keel, Tobacco Health 

Educator, MTW Health Department 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Wes Gray, MTW Health Department Director, asked for Ms. Keel to be on this 
month’s agenda to give a presentation on Tobacco/Vaping.  She will be sending a 
resolution on this subject to the Board for your November meeting.  Please see attached. 
 
 
 
 
 



Local Government Tobacco-Free 
Policies:
From Challenge to Success

September 7, 2021



What we will cover

1. Why tobacco-free policies are important
2. Local tobacco-free policy progress
3. Success Stories
4. Call to action



Why Tobacco-Free Policies Are 
Important

● Social Injustice and Disparities
● Cancer and Disease
● Secondhand Smoke Exposure
● Smoking damages nearly every part of the 

body
● Who is left using tobacco products
● E-cigarette aerosol is not harmless



Tobacco Use is a Social Injustice Issue



North Carolina collects data on people who are uninsured
or receive Medicaid who utilize more intensive mental
health and substance use disorder (SUD) treatment
services.

• 68% of people using SUD services used tobacco

• 56% of people using mental health services used
tobacco

Source: NC DHHS TOPPS Data, 2017

Tobacco Related Disparity



Smoking Related Disparity



1964

2006

2014

2016

Smoking Causes 
Lung Cancer



There is No Safe 
Level of 
Secondhand 
Smoke Exposure

1964

2006

2014

2016



There is no safe level of secondhand smoke



Secondhand Smoke Impacts Everyone



Smoking 
Damages Nearly 
Every Part of the 
Body

1964

2006

2014

2016





Who Is Still Left Using 
Tobacco Products?



90% of tobacco users start before the age of 18.
https://www.hhs.gov/surgeongeneral/reports-and-publications/tobacco/consequences-smoking-factsheet/index.html



Major Findings:

● E-cig aerosol is not harmless

● Most E-cigs contain nicotine

● Can harm brain development

● Can impact learning, memory 
and attention

● Can increase risk for future 
addiction to other drugs

1964

2006

2014

2016



2019 NORTH CAROLINA YOUTH TOBACCO SURVEY RESULTS 



Although overall tobacco use has decreased from 38.3% of high school 
students in 1999 to 27.3% in 2019, e-cigarette use increased 24% since 
2017.

2019 NORTH CAROLINA YOUTH TOBACCO SURVEY RESULTS 





Chapter 2 
Conclusion 8. 

 

E-cigarette 
products can be 
used as a 
delivery system 
for cannabinoids 
and potentially 
for other illicit 
drugs.

The 
Surgeon 
General’s 
Report



Tobacco Use Is the Leading Preventable Cause of Death in NC 
(SCHS)



Tobacco Use Costs Everyone







-Tobacco is easily accessible           -Smoking in public is legal

-Unfettered advertising                -Poor access to cessation help 

Individual
Tobacco 

Addiction

Society

Barriers Exist to Reducing Tobacco Use



The “Tobacco Control 
Vaccine” Works

Price Increases and 
Preventing Access to 
Tobacco Products 
(Effective T-21 law) Easy Access to 

Effective Tobacco 
Treatment

Hard Hitting Media 
Campaigns

100% Tobacco 
Free Policies



The Community Preventive Services Task Force 
Recommends Smoke-Free Policies to: 

• Reduce exposure to secondhand smoke;
• Reduce the prevalence of tobacco use;
• Increase the number of tobacco users who quit; 
• Reduce the initiation of tobacco use among young 

people; 
• Reduce tobacco-related morbidity and mortality, 

including acute cardiovascular events; and 
• Reduce healthcare costs substantially.





Local Governments Have Authority to 
Regulate Smoking in 

Local Government Buildings

“A building owned, leased or 
occupied by a local government” 
G.S. §130A-492(8):
Health Department Buildings; 

Courthouses;

Police Departments;

County Libraries; and

Other government facilities.



Local Governments 
Have Authority to 

Regulate Smoking in 
Local Vehicles

“A passenger-carrying vehicle 
owned, leased, or otherwise 
controlled by local 
government” G.S. 
§130A-492(9)

County and Municipal Vehicles and Buses



Local Governments Have Authority 
to Regulate Smoking on 

Local Government Grounds

“An unenclosed area owned, leased or 
occupied by local government” G.S. § 
130A-492(6)

Grounds next to city or county 
government buildings;
Parking lots;
Parks;
Sidewalks maintained/controlled by 
the city or county;
Bus stops; and
Other outdoor facilities.

https://www.nccourts.gov/locations/
martin-county/martin-county-govern
mental-center



Local Governments Have 
Authority to Regulate Smoking in 

Public Places

“An enclosed area to which the 
public is invited or in which the 
public is permitted” 
G.S. §130A-492(14)

Grocery stores;
Shopping centers; 
Banks;  
Gaming facilities; 
Bowling centers; 
Movie theaters; and
Other places where 
the public is permitted.



Local governments may adopt and enforce 
ordinances restricting or prohibiting smoking that 

are more restrictive than state law 

Board of County Commissioners
• May adopt an ordinance that applies to unincorporated areas, 

and
• If city agrees, ordinance may apply within incorporated areas.

Municipal Governing Board
• May adopt an ordinance that applies within the city limits, and
• May pass a resolution agreeing to have county ordinance apply 

within the city.



Local boards of health may adopt and enforce rules 
restricting or prohibiting smoking that are more 

restrictive than state law 

Local Board of Health / District Board of Health
• Rules apply throughout the county or district.
• Rule must be approved by an ordinance adopted by 

the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC).
• After BOCC approves the rule by ordinance, it applies 

throughout the county. 
• No additional action or approval of city or town 

councils is required. 



Local boards of health are most likely to be involved in 
policies related to tobacco, alcohol, or other drug use



Local governments can prohibit the use of 
smokeless tobacco and e-cigarettes

• The legislature has never passed legislation pre-empting local 
governments from regulating the use of e-cigarettes (or smokeless 
forms of tobacco), which are not lighted. 

• Therefore, local governments can pass such regulations under their 
basic authority to pass regulations to protect the health and welfare 
of the community.

• Boards of Health are regulating smokeless tobacco and 
e-cigarettes under general authority given in NCGS § 130A-39. 

• If a regulation for government buildings and/or grounds covers all 
“tobacco products”, then our interpretation is that e-cigarettes are 
included within that definition. 



Local Tobacco-Free Policy Progress 2







Success Stories 3



Durham County 
Smoke-Free 

Public Places Rule

Smoke-Free government 
buildings, vehicles and 

grounds

Smoke-Free public places

Now includes e-cigarettes



Orange County 
Smoke-Free Public 

Places Rule

Indoors 
• Where the public is 

invited or allowed 
• Regardless of public or 

private business 
ownership

Outside
• Municipal or County 

owned/controlled 
property

• Sidewalks
• Parks and Recreation 

facilities
• Bus Stops



Enforcement is About Education

… “Support of the rule should be grassroots in 
nature, relying on peers and the community to 
educate smokers about compliance. By 
involving the community in educational 
efforts and encouraging them to engage in 
dialogue about healthy choices, there should 
be little or no need for actual enforcement.”

Communication
Signage

Cessation

Shift in 
cultural 
norms

Partners! Partners! Partners!



Bessemer City Has the Strongest Local 
Tobacco-Free Ordinance in the State



Call to Action 4

❑ E-cigarettes

❑ Presentations for local boards of health

❑ Educate and inform decision-makers

❑ Challenge Award



Call to Action

“…accelerate policies 
and programs that can 
reduce e-cigarette use 
among young people.” 

“…implement proven 
strategies that will 
prevent potentially 
harmful effects of 
e-cigarette use among 
young people.” 



Individuals, 
parents, and 
families

Teachers, coaches, 
and other youth 
influences

Civic and community 
leaders

Public health and 
health care 
professionals

Researchers Federal government

State, local, tribal, and 
territorial governments

E-cigarette manufacturers, 
distributors, and retailers

Voluntary health 
agencies, 
non-governmental 
organizations, and other 
community and faith 
based organizations

Stakeholders Who Can Take Action



Where do you still see smoking in your 
communities?



What is Left Unchecked in Martin 
County?

Tobacco-free government 
buildings, vehicles, and 
grounds, including parks

Smoke-free public places, 
including e-cigarettes and 
tobacco-free recreation 

areas



What is Left Unchecked in Tyrrell 
County?

Tobacco-free government 
buildings, vehicles, and 

grounds

Smoke-free public places, 
including e-cigarettes



What is Left Unchecked in 
Washington County?

Tobacco-free government 
buildings, vehicles, and 
grounds, including parks

Smoke-free public places, 
including e-cigarettes and 
tobacco-free recreation 

areas



Important Facts on Smoking and COVID-19

● Cigarette smoking increases your risk of severe illness from COVID-19. 

● Cigarette smoking reduces lung immunity and cause underlying conditions that 
increase risk for severe illness from COVID, including heart and lung diseases and 
diabetes.

● A person who smokes may have a more severe case of COVID-19. 

● For free help quitting tobacco use, or staying tobacco-free, call
1-800-QUIT-NOW (1-800-784-8669) or visit www.quitlinenc.com.

WHAT YOU NEED TO KNOW

http://www.quitlinenc.com


What Will WE Do to Support YOU?

● We will write the policy

● Provide tobacco-free signage at 
no cost to you

● Provide Quitline posters and 
information to display

● Provide tobacco-free rugs at no 
cost to you

● Remove ashtrays

● Provide education on quitting 
tobacco



Contact the NC Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Branch

Sally Herndon, MPH
Branch Head 

(919)-707-5401
sally.herndon@dhhs.nc.gov 

Jim Martin, MS
Director of Policy and Programs

(919)-707-5404
jim.martin@dhhs.nc.gov 

Anna Stein, JD, MPH
Legal Specialist
(919)-707-5406

anna.stein@dhhs.nc.gov 

Joyce Swetlick, MPH 
Director of Tobacco 

Cessation 
(919)-707-5402

joyce.swetlick@dhhs.nc.gov 

Courtney Heck, MPH 
Director of Surveillance and 

Evaluation 
(919)-707-5412

Courtney.Heck@dhhs.nc.gov 

mailto:sally.herndon@dhhs.nc.gov
mailto:jim.martin@dhhs.nc.gov
mailto:anna.stein@dhhs.no.gov
mailto:joyce.swetlick@dhhs.nc.gov
mailto:Courtney.Heck@dhhs.nc.gov


Creating Healthy, Tobacco-Free 
Communities: Challenge Award from the 
NC Association of Local Health Directors

For a local county, town or city 
government that adopts regulation(s) 
including:
Tobacco-free government buildings, 
vehicles, and grounds and 
smoke-free public places, including 
electronic cigarettes, without 
exemptions
The Award will be rotated as adopted 
regulations become effective.  
Bessemer City, NC was the most 
recent awardee! 



Resources

Local Government Smoke-Free Implementation Toolkit - 
http://www.tobaccopreventionandcontrol.ncdhhs.gov/lgtoolkit/index.htm  

Business Pulse - www.cdcfoundation.org/businesspulse

The Community Guide - 
http://www.thecommunityguide.org/Tobacco/smokefreepolicies.html

UNC School of Government -  http://canons.sog.unc.edu/?p=7788  

U.S. Surgeon General’s Report on E-Cigarettes - 
https://e-cigarettes.surgeongeneral.gov/ 

TPCB Maps and Dashboards - 
http://www.tobaccopreventionandcontrol.ncdhhs.gov/maps/maps.htm 

http://www.tobaccopreventionandcontrol.ncdhhs.gov/lgtoolkit/index.htm
http://www.cdcfoundation.org/businesspulse
http://www.thecommunityguide.org/Tobacco/smokefreepolicies.html
http://canons.sog.unc.edu/?p=7788
https://e-cigarettes.surgeongeneral.gov/
http://www.tobaccopreventionandcontrol.ncdhhs.gov/maps/maps.htm


Questions?



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:       New Washington County Logo, Mr. Tom Harrison, Travel & Tourism 

Authority (TTA) Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Harrison requested to be on the Board’s agenda tonight to ask for the approval of a 
new Washington County logo.  He made a presentation to each of the three (3) Town 
Councils as this Board requested and will share the outcome of those meetings. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:       2020 Census Data & Redistricting, Mr. Harry White, GIS/Mapping 

Director and Mr. Richard Livingston, Lead For the North Carolina 
Fellow (LFNC) 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. White and Mr. Livingston will make a presentation to the Board regarding the release 
of the 2020 Census data and how it has affected electoral districts making redistricting 
necessary. 
 
 
 
 



An Update for Washington County

The 2020 Census



Introduction

Washington County Population 

Statutory Requirements

Next Steps

01

02

03

04

05

Contents
of the Report

Washington County | 2020 Census Report 02

Examples



Introduction

The census is conducted every 10 years to

measure the population of the United States for

the purposes of congressional reapportionment,

funding determination, and general information

collection. 

The decennial census is the largest mobilization

and operation conducted in the United States. 

02
Washington County | 2020 Census Report



03
Washington County | 2020 Census Report

11,003

16.8%

Decline

Population



 

A Note on Statute

04
Washington County | 2020 Census Report

§ 153A-22.  Redefining electoral district boundaries.

(a)        If a county is divided into electoral districts for the purpose of nominating or

electing persons to the board of commissioners, the board of commissioners may

find as a fact whether there is substantial inequality of population among the

districts.

(b)        If the board finds that there is substantial inequality of population among the

districts, it may by resolution redefine the electoral districts.

(c)        Redefined electoral districts shall be so drawn that the quotients obtained by

dividing the population of each district by the number of commissioners

apportioned to the district are as nearly equal as practicable, and each district shall

be composed of territory within a continuous boundary.

 



Measuring Population Inequality

11,003

Population

4

Districts

95% 105%100%

05

2,750.75

Goal Population

Washington County | 2020 Census Report

2,613 2,8882,750







Returning to Statute

 

§ 153A-22.  Redefining electoral district boundaries

 (d)      No change in the boundaries of an electoral district may affect the unexpired term of

office of a commissioner residing in the district and serving on the board on the effective date of

the resolution. If the terms of office of members of the board do not all expire at the same time,

the resolution shall state which seats are to be filled at the initial election held under the

resolution.

 (e)       A resolution adopted pursuant to this section shall be the basis of electing persons to the

board of commissioners at the first general election for members of the board of

commissioners occurring after the resolution's effective date, and thereafter. A resolution

becomes effective upon its adoption, unless it is adopted during the period beginning 150 days

before the day of a primary and ending on the day of the next succeeding general election for

membership on the board of commissioners, in which case it becomes effective on the first day

after the end of the period.

 

 
Washington County | 2020 Census Report09



Next Steps

Washington County | 2020 Census Report

10

1 2 3

Make new 

maps

Gather public 

opinion

Adopt a 

redistricting resolution

1

2

3

October 8, 2021

§ 153A-22 (e)

We are here

F
ili

n
g

 P
e

ri
o

d
 B

e
g

in
s

P
ri

m
a
ri

e
s

revisions as necessary











Richard Livingston

252-793-5823 ext 227

managementfellow@washconc.org

Contact

Harry White

252-793-2662 ext 300

hwhite@washconc.org

 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO: 9 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Northeastern Workforce Development Board (NWDB) 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked the Commissioners and the Clerk for assistance in 
identifying a new appointee to replace Diane White (Business Representative—
Washington County) who is resigning from the NWDB. 
 

At the last Commissioners’ meeting, Commissioner Johnson said since NWDB is 
looking for a business person but businesses are suffering and the owners can’t take the 
time to fill this spot, that she was going to take this back to the NWDB and ask for more 
time to find someone rather than losing a spot. 

          
Trillium Regional Advisory Board 
 
Mr. Dave Peterson, Senior Regional Director for Trillium Health Services, contacted 
Commissioner Johnson to ask the Board to appoint Ms. Kirsten Smith (Health Ed 
Supervisor/Preparedness Coordinator at MTW District Health Department) to fill the slot 
for Washington County on the Trillium Regional Advisory Board.   
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  10 
 
       DATE:  September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Budget Transfers and Amendments and Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
Ms. Dixon will also discuss the enclosed Monthly Financial Summary with the Board. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 



































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
 
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 

 Department Head Reports from August  2021 
 

 Statistics Report from August 2021 
 
 

See attached. 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
September 7, 2021 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 

 
Geographic Information Systems 
Harry White 
 
The GIS/Mapping Department is doing fine. The following tasks were completed by the 
GIS/Mapping Department  

• Verified of property as recorded on deeds 
• Transfer of real property 
• Land-parcel splits and recombination of property 
• Assist the general public with maps and related needs 
• Managed correspondence via phone, email  
• Assist the Finance Department when needed 
• Update property maps for the Tax Department & 911 
• Work on 2020 Census Redistricting map 
• Attend NCAUG Annual Virtual Conference Aug 30th - Sept 2nd in my office 

 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:  
The EMS Division continues to negotiate the open Paramedic position.  The Transport Division 
has one opening for a Basic EMT. COVID related illness is currently not affecting our staffing.   
 
EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 
PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 13 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances.   
 
OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  
Back to School events, Football Games and In-Home Covid Vaccinations are keeping us busy in 
between calls.   
 
So very proud of the PECC + Coordinator program that is underway. See the attached Press 
Release.  
 
As always, thank you for your continued support of the Washington-Tyrrell County EMS 
System.  
 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Recreation is doing good.  We are in football season and will have our first game Sat. August 28, 
2021.  We are praying that all will go well. 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
The month of August has been busy for me. The state board of elections has just changed 
out our programs to the cloud. Also, the proofs for the Town of Roper and Creswell have been 
reviewed and ballots are about ready to be ordered.  
 
 
Library 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 
Rebecca Liverman – County Extension Director 

 

Washington, Hyde, Tyrrell & Dare Counties were awarded 
$10,500 from NCDA Agritourism Division, to help boost community 
vibrancy by connecting the dots for consumers to our individual farms 
and fisheries. This is an App that is searchable by region, produce, 
event, venues, trails and other outdoor experiences. We will hopefully 
launch early September.  

 

• Rebecca was able to recertify for ServSafe certification. This 16 hour class is for food 
safety workers, cafeteria staff and anyone inspected by the Health Dept. If a food 
establishment has their certification, it is worth two points on their sanitation ranking. 

• Cooperative Extension and the Senior Center will host 
L.I.F.T., a virtual strength training series. There are 16 interactive sessions for adults. It 



 
 

 

will be held through Zoom and also recorded. In addition to strength training, we will 
focus on nutrition, water intake and being social!  
https://www.eventbrite.com/manage/events/168298484297/details 
 

Jalynne Waters – Ag Agent 

• The Blackland Farm Managers Tour was a SUCCESS!! Due to rain, we were not able to 
have the event in the field with our test plots, but we were able to move the event inside 
to the Turnpike Farms shop. The 425 attendees were able to listen to researchers present 
their information, visit with vendors, and enjoy a meal from 1 of 3 food trucks. Extension 
staff was met with very positive feedback from both growers and industry folks that 
attended the event. 

  
 

• Washington County Extension has hosted 2 turn-row meetings this month. (A turn-row 
meeting is a short, informal style of meeting with no agenda or meal – growers, industry 
folks, and researchers meet on the turn-row in the field where there is something 
interesting to see and discuss.)  

o Cotton Turn-row Meeting: Using a cotton plot that had been manipulated to 
display different levels of stand loss, Dr. Guy Collins conducted an activity on 
making replanting decisions. There were 9 people in attendance. 

o Corn Turn-row meeting: Dr. Ron Heiniger discussed the findings from his 
research at the Blackland Tour Site. There were 11 people in attendance. 

    
 

• Corn harvest has officially started!! Every year, Extension agents assist with measuring, 
calculating, and entering National Corn Yield Contest entries - this contest gives growers 
the chance to learn how their inputs (fertilizer, irrigation, row spacing, etc.) are affecting 
corn yield, and how it compares to other corn contest entrants across the nation. There is 

https://www.eventbrite.com/manage/events/168298484297/details


 
 

 

also a state level version of this contest. The laser pictured is the tool used to measure the 
distance the combine has harvested – once that distance is measured, we use the number 
of rows on the combine header (18 row header is pictured) and corn row spacing to 
calculate the acreage harvested. 

 
• The start of corn harvest means that stink bugs are moving out of corn fields and into 

soybeans, which requires growers to scout their fields to determine if an insecticide needs 
to be sprayed. I have received calls to scout alongside growers, questions about 
University insect scouting thresholds, and have also been scouting my own soybean test 
plot to determine if I need to spray. 

 
• I have been assigned as a moderator for the sweet corn and snap/lima bean sessions 2021 

Ag Expo and Trade Show, hosted by the NC Vegetable Growers association. Time this 
month has been spent working with the Lee County Horticulture Agent to recruit 
researchers and growers to speak at this event. 

 
Beth Stanley Jackson  
4-H Youth Development  
 
The 4-H Program wrapped up summer activities and has been working to plan for fall! We have 
used the month of August to review our JCPC Grant and make any necessary policy/procedural 
updates.  We are focusing our attention on offering programs through the schools and at-home to 
meet the needs of our youth.   
 



 
 

 

Looking forward… 
 
Following a successful summer of working with the Washington County Public Schools, we are 
looking forward to partnering this school year.  We plan to offer teachers a “menu” of options for 
elementary grade levels.  Curriculum for this year will focus on healthy living and life sciences.   
 
Aside from school programming, we will offer our at-home kits for youth ages 5-12 on a 
quarterly basis.  These will include seasonal activities focusing on S.T.E.A.M. and healthy 
living.  Online registration will open in October.   
 
The 4-H Homework Hub sponsored by our JCPC Grant will provide after-school opportunities at 
least twice a month for youth ages 13-18. Youth will have the chance to work on homework 
followed by a hands-on activity at the Extension Office.  Both programs will require online 
registration.  Be sure to follow us @WashingtonCountyNC4H for updates and additional 
program offerings.  
 

 

Washington County Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Burl Walker 
 

During this period there were four (4) veterans assisted as well as six (6) dependents with 
11 telephone calls. 

1. I submitted request for one (1) Property Exclusion request. 
2. I submitted two (2) request for grave markers and Presidential Memorial  
3. I furnished one (1) DD214 to funeral director. 
4. Was notified that veteran was not permanent & totally so was not eligible for Property 

Tax Exclusion. 
5. Explained to a 100% disabled veteran why his 53 year old son was not eligible for 

classification as a helpless child. 
6. I assisted one (1) veteran to get registered in the VA Healthcare system. 



 
 

 

7. I submitted one (1) request for Individually Unemployable Compensation for veteran. 

 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
1. We are still extremely busy.  We are still receiving numerous email requests, phone calls, 

fax requests and office visits for different information concerning tax bills.     
2. I attended the Department Head Meeting.  
3. I worked on the auditors requested info.  
4. We continue to collect payments for accounts that have been referred for foreclosure – 

every time we get a payment, receive correspondence (such as the need to add costs) or are 
notified in any way about a property in foreclosure we notify ZLS and update the accounts 
in foreclosure.  As information is received from Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) we 
update the accounts.  We also handle phone calls, emails or visits from persons whose 
property are in foreclosure and persons interested in buying property in foreclosure.   

5. Denise Jones processed the Insolvents, Refunds and Releases reports. 
6. Denise Jones processed the monthly reports from NCVTS.  
7. Denise Jones researched estate files at the Clerk of Court’s office.  
8. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions.  
9. Darlene Harrison continued work with the mortgage companies.   
10. Staff continues to handle the calls regarding Republic Services (RS) and the taxpayers 

over trash cans, recycle bins, trash and debris pickup.  As of today, we received 111 
requests that were added to the report we send to RS each day.  This does not cover all the 
phone calls we receive as some of those are just questions.   

11. I submitted the Statistical Reports.  
12. Darlene Harrison and I processed tax certifications. 
13. Darlene Harrison sat in on webinars concerning public records.  
14. Felesha Brown has been working on catching up transfers.   

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits Issued   32 
Fire Inspections    4   Schools 

1 Senior Center 
Plan Reviews     3 
Building Inspections  48 (Issued 3 Certificates of Occupancy) 
Respond to Structure Fires   3  (9th, 11th, 12th) 
Bertie County Contract   5 days – 3rd, 10th, 17th, 23rd, 30th 

Ride and Assess Floodplain in Washington County  16th –  

Consultations:      3 -town of Plymouth – Code Enforcement Officer Brown 

        School Maintenance regarding Fire Department entry for  
       Alarm calls at Washington County Early College HS 
 
Planning Board Meeting -   ZOOM   



 
 

 

Con Ed:  24th Exercise in Roanoke Rapids – Gaston Dam & Dominion 
Power 

   – EAP for Dam Project (Floodplain Administrator) 
8-31 and 09-02  School of Government  Land Use Plan 
Requirements for 160-D revision 

 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 
Updates regarding Washington County Water System and C&D Landfill are as follows: 
 
Solid Waste 
 
The landfill took in 76.97 Tons of Leaves, Brush and Limbs, 29.68 Tons of Inert Debris, .54. 
 Tons of Scrap Metal,   68.47  Tons of Construction Debris and 3.73 tons of Scrap Tires this 
month. 
 
Water Department 
 
Water plant staff treated and distributed a total of 14.9  (MG). The average daily usage was .480 
MG. We served 2624 accounts, billing customers for 9.222 MG of water. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
911:  We have hired 2 part time employees who have started their training and we will be doing 
interviews in the coming weeks to hopefully add more personnel to our staff. We will also be 
moving forward with the new radio purchase for the 911 center in the coming weeks as well.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Detention: 
 

 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
No report submitted. 
  
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Working on tractor, hydraulic lines on tractor busted. (not repaired) 
2. Did not have roof leaks in last rain, but have couple more places to repair. 
3. Grass growing extra fast with all the rain, hard keeping it mowed. 
4. The ALP for Airport open house as follows was held at the Commissioners room on 

August 9. The advisory committee will meet in September to make changes if needed 
before it is summited for approval. 

 
 



 
 

 

Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Installed rubber bushing in the commode in the men’s bathroom on the 2nd floor jury 
room. 

2. Cleaned out the drain line in the A/C unit in the Register of Deeds office & Tax 
Department. 

3. Installed rubber bushing in the urinal at the BCCC Washington County Center. 
4. Trim tree limbs around the County Manager’s Building. 
5. Disinfect and set up for court at Plymouth Church of Christ. 
6. Seal the drain on the rood and patch the rubber roof. 
7. Put cabinets together for library. 
8. Installed ceiling tiles on the 4th floor and changed A/C filters. 
9. Installed bulbs and balance on the basement floor light fixture. 
10. Clean and disinfect county buildings and offices. 
11. Cut grass, trim, weed eating around county buildings. 
12. Installed flush valve, handles, receptacles, light fixtures, light switches, exhaust fan, and 

water faucet. 
13. Removed file cabinets and other objects from basement at the Probation building.  

 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month) 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 

 



 
 

 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
(see below) 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0
Female 0
Male 0
Female 0
Male 0
Female 0
Male 0
Female 0
Male 0
Female 0
Male 0
Female 0
Male 0
Female 0
Male 0
Female 0

0
Male 0
Female 0US PRISON TRANSPORT 

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

NASH

SMCP

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY 
(includes all Counties) 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22) 

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

NASH

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
WC Dispatched 129 129
WC Transported 90 90
WC Refusals 39 39

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1
SNF to Doctors 68 68
Hospital Discharges 15 15
EMS Back Up 2 2

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
TC Dispatched 62 62
TC Transported 43 43
TC Refusals 19 19

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 0
HC Transported 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22 
(W hi t  T ll & H d  C ti ) 



34% 

24% 
10% 

16% 

11% 
5% 0% 0% 0% 

    
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties) 

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        $15,446.00
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         $150.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             $100.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             $125.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             $10.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,831.00

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22)  

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

97% 

1% 1% 1% 0% 

Fees Collected 
Percentages 

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 382
Unduplicated Attendees 34 34
New Particpants 2 2
Center-Sponsored Events 100 100
Special Events 15 15
Caregiver's Support Group 5 5
Exercise Room 24 24
Dance Fitness 10 10
Yoga 32 32
Chair Exercise 90 90
Beginner's Line Dance 40 40
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 30
Craft Room 0
Drop-in Activities 0
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1218
Congregate Meals Served 294 294
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 924

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA -$      -$         -$      -$         -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  -$            
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees -$            
Donations -$            

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22

Meals Served (FY21-22) Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

 



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

   

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

29% 

4% 
1% 

7% 
3% 

9% 

26% 

12% 

0% 
9% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

    
Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1672
Law Enforcement 655 640 1295

Animal Control 54 64 118
EMS 109 150 259

Reported Incidents 85 38 123
Total Arrests 23 5 28

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 4
Felony Arrests 20 4 24

Total Papers Served 24 37 61
Criminal Papers Served 6 6

Civil Papers Served 24 31 55
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 41
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 3

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 38
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 35
Conceals Pending 7 20 27

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 52

SHERRIFF
FY21-22

77% 

7% 

16% 

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22) 

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS
10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Gun Permits (FY21-22) 



77% 

0

5

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

YTD TOTALS

123 

4 

24 

6 

55 

3 

38 

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22) 

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$   
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$       
Current Year Penalty 925.05$              
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                 
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$         
Watershed Discount (515.49)$             
Watershed Penalty 11.08$                
Watershed Interest -$                    
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$         
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$                
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$           
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$              
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                  
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$              
Bad Checks -$                    
Prepayments 1,684.51$           

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$   -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$  -$  -$                                      

Initiated
Amount
Satisfied/Cancelled
Amount

*

-$                                      

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$   1,175,700.00$                     
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$       372,776.94$                         
Bad Checks -$                    -$                                      

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$   1,548,476.94$                     

Billed Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$  -$                                      
Collected Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$  -$                                      
Prior Yrs Collected -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$  -$                                      

Collected Current Yr -$                                      

DMV -$                                      

Creswell Levy -$                                      

TOTAL -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$  -$  -$                                      

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments



3,812,602.65$   -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$  -$  3,812,602.65$                     TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees 

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest

Prior Year Tax Prior Year Penalty Prior Year Interest Prior Year Watershed Prior Year WS Penalty Prior Year WS Interest Bad Checks Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 77

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 9

Base Charges 64,536$      64,536$           
Consumption Charges 47,983$      47,983$           
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        1,365$             

 Number of Abatements 11 11                     

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$  3,224.00$       

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 14.900

Number of Customers 2624 2,624
New taps 4 4

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 76.97
Inert Debris 29.68 29.68
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.54
C&D 68.47 68.47
Tires 3.73 3.73
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$               

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)

2% 

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22) 

80

90

FY Water Consumption Comparison 
  

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)



43% 

17% 
0% 

38% 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   12 
   
       DATE:     September 7, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda September 7, 2021
	9-7-2021 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Item 1a) 8-2-2021 minutes
	Item 1c) Tax Refunds & Releases
	Item 1d) FEE Schedule update for EMS
	Item 1e) Article V- Employee Benefits Proposed Revision Sections 1 through 10
	Item 1f) Resolution_VUR 9-7-2021
	CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

	Item 1g) Reso2021-005 authorizing sale of real property 111 E Main Street
	Item 1h) Reso2021-013 Rev BOCC Resolution re Opposing Reduction in Number of Judges in 2nd Judicial District 8-13-2021
	Item 1i) SAA Washington County Delegate List for 2021-22
	Table 1

	Item 1j) 911 Day of Remembrance & 20th Anniversary 9-7-21
	Item 1k) Reso 2021-014 Surplus Property Disposition
	Item 1l) 2021 Late Applications Memo -Board of Commissioners
	9-7-2021 Item 2 (public forum)
	HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM/PUBLIC HEARING DURING COVID-19 AT THE SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
	Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency and comm...

	9-7-2021 Item 3 Public Hearing CTP
	Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency and comm...

	Item 3 FY 2023 PublicHearing Notice
	Section 5311 (ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.

	9-7-2021 Item 4 Employee of the Quarter
	9-7-2021 Item 5 Department Information Update- EM
	Item 5 EMDepartment Presentation
	9-7-2021 Item 6 Tobacco-Vaping Pres
	Item 6 Tobacco-Vaping MTW Government Policies Presentation
	9-7-2021 Item 7 New Washington County Logo
	9-7-2021 Item 8 2020 Census Data and Redistricting
	Item 8 Washington County and the 2020 Census
	9-7-2021 Item 9 Boards & Committees
	9-7-2021 Item 10 Budget Amendments & Transfers and Finance Officer's Report
	Item 10 Budget Amend-Transfers
	Item 10 8-26-21 Finance Report
	9-7-2021 Item 11 Other Items
	Item 11 Reports for 9-7-2021 BoC Meeting
	Item 11 Cover Sheet for Stat Report
	Item 11 FY21-22  Statistic Reports
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	Sheriff's Office
	 Tax
	Utilities

	9-7-2021 Item 12 Closed Session



